STUDENT'S HANDBOOK

Woman's Medical College

of

Pennsylvania.

PRESENTED BY THE
Young Women's Christian Association,

..180
STUDENT'S HANDBOOK

Woman's Medical College

of

Pennsylvania.

PRESENTED BY THE
Young Women's Christian Association,

1894.
Greeting.

The Young Women's Christian Association in the Woman's Medical College of Pennsylvania extends warm greeting to you, and heartily bids you welcome.

Those who have known us heretofore, we greet as old friends; those who come to us for the first time we welcome as our friends of the future. We take pleasure in presenting to you this little book, and hope it may be of service to you in your college life.

We trust that all, whether members of the Association or not, will consider Brinton Hall their college home, and we most cordially invite you to attend any meeting.

The members of the Association will consider it a privilege if they can, in any way, at any time, assist you.
Officers of the Y. W. C. A.

ELIZABETH M. LOVELACE, President.

ALICE M. SEABROOK, Vice-president.

HELEN A. LORD, Recording Secretary.

AMELIA DRANGA, Treasurer.

JOSEPHINE PHELPS, Librarian.

MARY L. BURNHAM, Corresponding Secretary.

Chairmen of Standing Committees.

Membership.—Ida E. Blackburn.

Missionary.—Josephine Phelps.

Clinic Hall Meetings.—Mary McD. Shick.

Brinton Hall Meetings.—Mary Virginia McCune.

Children's Ward Meetings.—Olive L. Clarke.
Rules of Membership.

ARTICLE III.

Section 1.—That active membership of the Association shall consist of students, members of the faculty and alumnæ of this College, and of the physicians and nurses of the Woman's Hospital of Philadelphia who have assented to the following pledge: "In uniting with this Association I declare my belief in Jesus Christ as my Lord and Saviour, and dedicate my life to Him."

Only active members shall have a right to vote and hold office.

Section 2.—Any student, teacher, or alumnæ of this College, physician or nurse of the Hospital, may be elected an associate member by a majority vote of the members present at any meeting.

Section 3.—Any person may be elected an honorary member by a majority vote of the members present at any meeting.
Members of the Y. W. C. A. will be glad to meet new students who are unacquainted with the city, in the Ladies' Waiting Room at the railroad stations and escort them to the College. This assistance can be secured by sending your name, the time at which you will arrive, and the station, to the President of the Association. Address, Woman's Medical College, Philadelphia, Pa. Members of the Association will be recognized by a badge of the College ribbon, gray and red.

If any one desiring assistance in procuring rooms will call at the parlor at Brinton Hall, she will find a member of the Y. W. C. A. who will willingly render her any aid in her power.

The Women's Christian Association of Philadelphia extends a cordial invitation to all women to its building, on the southwest corner of Eighteenth and Arch streets. They receive persons at all hours, and the expenses are from twenty-five to fifty cents per night. This makes a comfortable and convenient home until another boarding place is found.
History of the Y. W. C. A.

The Y. W. C. A., in the Woman's Medical College of Pennsylvania, was organized in November, 1885. Previous to this date, weekly prayer meetings had been held in private houses in the neighborhood. The Association will always remember with sincere affection and gratitude, the friend who for so long a time allowed her parlor to be used for both business and prayer meetings. Mrs. Vaché's name is very closely connected with the early life of the Association, and she is still its true friend and helper. Through the kindness of the managers of the Woman's Hospital, the meetings were held for a time in Clinic Hall. In February, 1888, Miss Susanna Brinton, of Lancaster County, Pa., gave the Association the use of the house on the corner of Twenty-second and Thompson streets, since called "Brinton Hall." This house has been of untold value in providing the Association with headquarters.

This Association stands for the Christian life of the college—it is for you; and the officers and members, in bidding you welcome, ask you to identify yourself with it early in your college course. We cordially invite you to membership with us, and to attend all of our meetings, whether you are a member or not.
Brinton Hall.

Corner Twenty-second and Thompson streets.

The Y. W. C. A., in the Woman's Medical College, has for the past eight years enjoyed in this the privileges of a home through the kindness of Miss Susanna Brinton.

This kind friend, always eager to aid in the struggle for the higher education of women, was moved at that time by a sudden strong impulse to leave her quiet country home and come to the city to see in what way she could best render aid to the Woman's Medical College. After repeated interviews with Dean Bodley, the plans crystallized in a Y. W. C. A. home, which was purchased by Miss Brinton, who offered the girls the immediate use of the house, and to hold it for them while they secured the funds to make it their own.

Owing to the frequent change of officers and members, no prolonged effort has been made to purchase it. During the winter of 1893-94 the question was again agitated, and the determination formed to make more vigorous efforts to buy the house. With this object in view the Association has become incorporated. Dr. Henry Leffmann has kindly consented to act as treasurer.

The interest of all the friends of the College is asked in this effort to purchase Brinton Hall, which has become of such value to the students. It is used for the religious, social and business meetings of the Association.

To the new students we extend a most hearty welcome and a most cordial invitation to come and enjoy its privileges.
The students on duty in the Maternity Department of the Hospital are required to spend their time, when not in College, at Brinton Hall. Cots are provided for the use of such persons at very small cost.

Private quizzing has become quite a factor in our college life, and as such classes are not permitted in the college building, a room has been prepared at Brinton Hall for that purpose.

Arrangements for the use of this room must be made with Amelia Dranga, treasurer of the Association.

Devotional Work of the Association.

Clinic Hall Meetings.

During the college year, meetings are held every Sabbath afternoon in Clinic Hall. These meetings are led by members of the Association and others, and are attended by students and their friends, and inmates of the Hospital who are able to be present. All are invited to take part, and many do so. In this work valuable assistance has been rendered by Mrs. Vaché and Mrs. Hornberger, who have led the singing for us regularly. We have had many addresses from returned missionaries and others interested in the work, who have given us an insight into the work in other lands.

The following topics have been selected for each meeting during the year, and the leaders names are given.
Topics of Clinic Hall Prayer Meetings for 1894-95.
Woman's Hospital, Philadelphia. Sunday afternoon, 4.15 o'clock.

1894

September 30.—God's Word.
   Jer. xxxv, 21-25; Deut. xxx, 11-14.
   Elizabeth M. Lovelace.

October 7.—How are Men Helped by the Holy Spirit.
   John xvi, 1-15; I Corinthians ii, 10-16.
   Josephine Phelps.

October 14.—Bible Study.
   The Book of Ruth.
   Anna M. Littlefield.

October 21.—Human Longings and their Satisfaction.
   Olive L. Clarke.

October 28.—Missionary Meeting.

November 4.—The Day of Small Things.
   Zechariah iv, 10; Job viii, 5-7; Matthew xiii, 33.
   Emma O. Cleaver.

November 11.—Bible Study.
   The Book of Ezra.
   Alice M. Seabrook.

November 25.—Missionary Meeting.

December 2.—How Christ Helps in our Daily Tasks.
   Colossians iii, 12-17.
   Jennie S. Sharp.
December 9.—Bible Study.
   The Book of Nehemiah.
   *Margaret K. Sullivan.*

December 16.—To One Man.
   *Lula C. Fleming.*

December 23.—Missionary Meeting.

December 30.—The Old and New.
   Acts ix, 1-22; II Cor. v, 17; Gal. ii, 20.
   *Frances F. Cattell.*

January 6.—Prayer and its Answers.
   (Week of Prayer.)
   *Ellen M. McMillan.*

January 13.—Bible Study.
   The Book of Esther.
   *Mary A. Ayer.*

January 20.—Divine Guidance.
   Exodus xl, 34-38; Ps. xxiii; John x, 4-14.
   *Mary V. McCune.*

January 27.—Missionary Meeting.

February 3.—How to Bear Burdens.
   Galatians vi, 1-5.
   *Sylvia P. Blake.*

February 10.—Bible Study.
   The Book of Daniel.
   *Mary M. Shick.*
February 17.—The Believer's Resources.
I Cor. iii, 21-23; II Chron. xiv, 9-14; Ps. xxxi, 14-24.

Dr. Mary Baer.

February 24.—Missionary Meeting.

March 3.—How to Bring Others to Christ.
I Corinthians ix, 19-27.

Matilda Hartzel.

March 10.—Bible Study.
The Book of Haggai.

Mary L. Burnham.

March 17.—Why We Love Jesus.
I John iv, 17-20; Galatians i, 14.

Blanche M. Mansfield.

March 24.—Missionary Meeting.

March 31.—Living for Christ.
Romans xii, 1; Acts xiii, 47.

Mary L. Montgomery.

April 7.—Ten Prayers.

Ida E. Blackburn.

April 14.—Bible Study.
The Book of Malachi.

Dr. Chertsey Hopkins.

April 21.—Conflict.
Psalms xix, 12-14; Matthew xxvi, 41.

Margaret C. Lewis.

April 28.—Missionary Meeting.

May 5.—The Christian's Joys.

M. Magdalena Warner.
The Children's Ward.

A Sabbath School service is held in the Children's Ward in the Hospital, and is much enjoyed by the little ones. Singing, a short simple lesson, stories, and the distribution of pictures and papers cause the little invalids to look forward eagerly to the coming of Sabbath afternoon. The students volunteer their services for this work.

Brinton Hall Prayer Meetings.

A half-hour prayer meeting is held at Brinton Hall every Thursday morning. This, too, is led by students, a committee in charge arranging for the same. The meetings are well attended, and have proven a great help to many of the students.

Missionary Meetings.

For the past two years there have been missionary meetings held at Brinton Hall. They will be continued during this year, and the program for each month promises to be very interesting. The subject for study during the year will be China, and the date of each meeting will be announced. The first meeting will be in the form of a Chinese reception, at which we hope to welcome many new friends.

There is a small library of well-chosen works on missions and missionaries which is open to members of the Association and their friends. This has been well used, and much interest has been shown in the mission work.
Bible Study.

There will be a regular course in Bible Study during the winter under the care of a competent instructor. We hope that all will avail themselves of this valuable opportunity.

The Student Volunteer Association of Philadelphia.

On Sunday, October 30, 1892, the students in the colleges of Philadelphia, who were members of the Student Volunteer Movement for Foreign Missions, and others deeply interested in mission work, met in the parlor of the Y. M. C. A. building, Fifteenth and Chestnut streets, in response to a call from the Student Volunteer Movement to observe that day as a day of prayer for India. Out of this coming together of those whose hearts were turned toward the earth's darkest places grew the "Student Volunteer Association of Philadelphia."

Monthly meetings, devoted to addresses from missionaries and papers or talks by the members on different phases of mission work, biographies of missionaries, etc., have been held. The Volunteers have thus gained more practical knowledge of missions and have received new inspiration for present and future work.

Each year has seen new volunteers added to the ranks. Six of our number have already gone to their fields during the past year, and two will sail this fall.

We expect, during this year, to reach out to other colleges. Under the auspices of the Volunteer Movement, a student of our own College will devote most
of her time to the work, visiting the girls' institutions in eastern Pennsylvania and New Jersey.

The regular monthly meetings of the Association will be held during the year, the time and place of which will be announced on the College bulletin board.

All students are not only cordially invited, but solicited to attend.
College Calendar.

1894.

September 26.—Wednesday. College opens for Registration of Students.
September 27.—Thursday. Lectures begin 9.15 a. m.
September 29.—Saturday. Entrance Examination, 8.30 a. m.
November 29.—Thursday. Holiday.
December 22.—Saturday. Christmas Recess begins.

1895.

January 2.—Wednesday. College reopens 9.15 a. m.
April 24.—Wednesday. Examinations begin, 9 a. m.
May 6.—Monday. Examination for internes Woman's Hospital, 9 a. m.
May 8.—Wednesday. Annual Commencement for Conferring the Degree of Doctor of Medicine, 12 m.
May 9 and 10.—Thursday and Friday. Annual Meeting of Alumnae Association.

Faculty.

Clara Marshall, M. D., 131 S. Eighteenth street.
Frances Emily White, M. D., 1437 N. Sixteenth street.
Anna E. Broookall, M. D., 1229 Walnut street.
Hannah T. Croasdaic, M. D., 1525 Walnut street.
William H. Parish, M. D., 1435 Spruce street.
Henry Jeffermann, M. D., 715 Walnut street.
John B. Roberts, M. D., 1627 Walnut street.
Frederick P. Henry, M. D., 1635 Locust street.
Auxiliary Instructors.

Amy S. Barton, M. D., 1523 Spruce street.
Charles K. Mills, M. D., 1909 Chestnut street.
Henry W. Stelwagon, M. D., 223 S. Seventeenth street.
Charles H. Burnett, M. D., 127 S. Eighteenth street.
H. Augustus Wilson, M. D., 1611 Spruce street.
Emma E. Musson, M. D., 1206 Locust street.
Lawrence Wolff, M. D., 333 S. Twelfth street.
Edward P. Davis, M. D., 251 S. Twenty-first street.
F. G. Ryan, Ph. G., College of Pharmacy, Phila.
Mary Sherwood, M. D., Baltimore, Md.
Elizabeth R. Bundy, M. D., 1924 Chestnut street.
Lucy N. Tappan, M. D., 1229 Walnut street.
Kate W. Baldwin, M. D., 320 S. Eleventh street.
Arthur A. Stevens, M. D., 318 S. Fifteenth street.
Eleanor M. Hiestand-Moore, M. D., Woodbury, N. J.
Eleanor C. Jones, M. D., 641 N. Eighth street.
Caroline M. Purnell, M. D., 1525 Walnut street.
Elizabeth L. Peck, M. D., 823 North Fortieth street.
Mary W. Griscom, M. D., 1335 S. Tenth street.
Maria C. Walsh, M. D., 1335 S. Tenth street.
Ruth Webster Lathrop, M. D., Fifteenth street below Oxford.
Mary Getty, M. D., 414 W. Huntingdon street.
Annie Bartram Hall, M. D., Fifteenth street below Oxford.
Florence Mayo, M. D., 414 W. Huntingdon street.
Katharine Williamson, M. D., 2129 Fitzwater street.
Elizabeth Snyder, M. D., 2062 Columbia avenue.
Emma L. Billstein, M. D., 317 S. Eighteenth street.
History of the College.

The idea of a medical college for women seems to have originated about the same time in the minds of two eminent physicians, Dr. Bartholomew Russell and Dr. Joseph F. Longshore, and the latter, through the friendship of James Flowers, then a member of the State Legislature, secured a charter March 11, 1850, for the "Female Medical College of Pennsylvania," afterwards called the "Woman's Medical College of Pennsylvania."

The following summer was busily spent maturing plans for the successful accomplishment of the undertaking. A suitable corps of instructors was difficult to obtain, as at that time public sentiment was so bitter that those having anything to do with the new college were not recognized by their brethren in the profession. The first home of the infant college was a building previously used as a private academy, back of 627 Arch street. The first session opened October 12, 1850, with fifty students, many of whom did not enter with any idea of completing the course, but as special students. This is shown by the fact that only eight received the degree of Doctor of Medicine, December 30, 1851, the first awarded by the new college. Of these eight, Dr. Ann Preston stands out prominently as the future rescuer and Dean of the college, and foremost in the founding of the Woman's Hospital of Philadelphia.

After a few years the novelty wore away, and fewer students matriculated. It was found that didactic lectures without practical clinical instruction were not sufficient. The excellent clinical advantages offered by the hospitals of Philadelphia were denied
them. The funds of the college were exhausted. The country was involved in war. Many of the professors and students were employed in the hospitals caring for the sick and wounded soldiers, and the session of 1861-62 was omitted. It seemed as if the project must end in failure.

It was at this crisis that Dr. Ann Preston came to the rescue. She believed the cause to be a righteous one, that the one obstacle must be surmounted and clinical instruction obtained. With this object in view, she presented the cause to all those in and around the city whom she thought might give her either money or influence. In response to her appeals many became interested and funds were pledged, and the Woman’s Hospital of Philadelphia was granted its charter in 1860. A house on North College avenue was obtained and fitted up as a hospital, and here, in the fall of 1862, the college convened again in rooms rented for the purpose.

As the work of the hospital increased the room thus occupied was needed, and, as the college became more widely known and the number of students increased, it was evident that it must have a home of its own. As the valuable work done by women in medicine was recognized the prejudice against them wore away and the college grew in favor. Bequests and contributions were forthcoming in this time of need, and it was determined to erect a building on the corner of Twenty-first street and North college avenue, adjoining the Woman’s Hospital. The corner-stone was laid October 1, 1874, and the building was occupied during the spring term of 1875. Many changes and improvements have been made, but none that have interfered with its occupancy.
This college was among the first in the country to lengthen its winter term and to adopt a progressive course of study with a division of final examinations, and it was the first to make a three years' course obligatory. To the regular winter term was added a spring term of ten weeks, mainly devoted to demonstrative and clinical teaching, although lectures were given in special departments of medicine not provided for in the curriculum of the winter. The winter term was lengthened and the spring term dropped in 1890, and a four years' course of study recommended. The four years' course was made obligatory in the fall of 1893. Instead of the "weekly clinic" at the Woman's Hospital, there are now four general clinics per week and daily Dispensary clinics, all of which the students are required to attend.

In addition to this, regular bedside instruction is given to the students in the wards of the Woman's Hospital by the physician in charge.

Now, also, the best hospitals in the city have thrown their doors open to our students for clinical instruction, and many admit them as interns.

With these increasing advantages the field for women in medicine is ever widening, and it remains for the students of to-day to prove themselves worthy of the trust.

A kitchen and dining room in the college building are furnished with the necessary conveniences whereby those wishing to do so can prepare their own meals. Each student provides her own table-cloth, napkins, dishes and cooking utensils.
The Students' Association.

All the students are members of this Association. It meets at the call of the President to transact business of interest to all, and a full attendance is solicited.

Students' Medical Society.

This Society was organized last year. Its membership is limited to students. Although in existence so short a time, it was found very helpful, as it furnished a medium whereby subjects not regularly provided for in the schedule could be presented and discussed.

Hospital Bed.

The Students' Association has made arrangements with the Board of Managers of the Woman's Hospital to endow a bed in that Hospital for perpetuity for the sum of $3000. One thousand dollars has already been raised, which gives the students the use of the bed for three months. This bed is intended for the benefit of any student suffering from a non-communicable disease who desires to avail herself of its use, and becomes available by application of her attending physician to the Dean of the Faculty.

As it is desirable to raise the remainder of the money as soon as possible, the new students are invited to pay one dollar, and the old students fifty cents to the committee in charge at the beginning of each year.
Hints.

The College ribbon, red and gray, can be obtained at Strawbridge & Clothier's, Eighth and Market sts.

Time and money will be saved by employing the local express, 1913 Ridge avenue, opposite Girard College wall, to deliver baggage.

Postal Money Orders should be made out to Columbia Station, Philadelphia, otherwise they will be sent to the Philadelphia office, Ninth and Market streets.

The Northwestern National Bank, at the corner of Girard and Ridge avenues, is a safe and convenient place to open an account. The matriculation ticket will usually serve for identification. Banking hours are from 9 a. m. to 3 p. m.

Much unnecessary delay and embarrassment are often occasioned by students presenting for registration without their certificates or diplomas. Therefore all having such papers are advised to make a special effort to have them ready for presentation at the time of matriculation.

No. 1335 S. Tenth street is of interest to all members of the Senior class, as it is there they go for the two obstetrical cases required before graduation. The middle room on the second floor is for the use of the students. The rules to be observed are to be found on the wall. Meals will be furnished at very reasonable rates by the housekeeper, if desired.
Places of Interest.

Academy of Fine Arts, Broad and Cherry streets.
Academy of Natural Sciences, Nineteenth and Race streets.
City Hall (Public Buildings), Broad and Market streets.
Carpenters' Hall, Chestnut and Third streets.
Girard College, Girard and Corinthian avenues.
Horticultural Hall, West Park.
Independence Hall, Chestnut and Sixth streets.
Memorial Hall, West Park.
Old Swedes Church, Swanson street and Washington avenue.
Drexel Institute, Chestnut and Thirty-second streets.
Penitentiary, Fairmount avenue and Twenty-first street.
Pennsylvania Historical Society, Thirteenth and Locust streets.
United States Mint, Chestnut and Broad streets.
Zoological Gardens, Fairmount Park.

Libraries.

City Institute (free), Eighteenth and Chestnut streets.
City Hall (free), Broad and Market streets.
Mercantile, Tenth street above Chestnut street.
Philadelphia, Broad and Locust streets.
Wagner Institute (free), Eighteenth street and Montgomery avenue.
Wilson's Circulating, Eleventh and Sansom streets.
Hospitals.

Almshouse and City (Blockley), Thirty-fourth and Pine streets.
Children's, Twenty-second and Walnut streets.
German, Girard and Corinthian avenues.
Hahnemann, Fifteenth and Race streets.
Pennsylvania, Eighth and Spruce streets.
Polyclinic, Lombard street above Eighteenth street.
West Philadelphia, Woman's, 4035 Parrish street.
Wills Eye, Race street above Eighteenth street.

Churches.

Grace Temple (Baptist), Broad and Berks streets.
Cathedral of St. Peter and St. Paul (Catholic), Eighteenth above Race street.
Central (Congregational), Eighteenth and Green sts.
Holy Trinity (Episcopal), Nineteenth and Walnut streets.
Friends, Girard avenue and Seventeenth street.
Orthodox Friends, Twelfth street above Chestnut.
Keneseth-Israel (Jewish), Broad street above Columbia avenue.
Messiah (Lutheran), Sixteenth and Jefferson streets.
Spring Garden (Methodist Episcopal), Twentieth and Spring Garden streets.
Olivet (Presbyterian), Twenty-second and Mt. Vernon streets.
North (United Presbyterian), Master above Fifteenth street.
Spring Garden (Unitarian), Broad and Brandywine sts.

Religious and Philanthropic Works.

Bethany Sunday School (Wanamaker's), Twenty-second and Bainbridge streets.
College Settlement, St. Mary's street below Seventh.
Florence Crittenton Mission No. 7, 318 S. Seventh st.
Salvation Army Post, 919 Ridge avenue.
Sunday Breakfast Association, Twelfth st. abv. Race.
Y. M. C. A., Fifteenth and Chestnut streets.
### Streets.

<table>
<thead>
<tr>
<th>North.</th>
<th>South.</th>
</tr>
</thead>
<tbody>
<tr>
<td>1 Market, Filbert Commerce, Church</td>
<td>1 Market, Jayne Merchant, Minor</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>100 Arch, Cherry</td>
<td>100 Chestnut, Sansom Library, Dock</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>200 Race, New, Branch</td>
<td>200 Walnut, Locust</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>300 Vine, Wood</td>
<td>300 Spruce, Union</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>400 Callowhill, Willow Noble, Margaretta</td>
<td>400 Pine</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>500 Buttonwood, Spring Garden, Brandywine</td>
<td>500 Lombard, Gaskill</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>600 Green, Mt. Vernon Wallace, Melon</td>
<td>600 South</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>700 Fairmount avenue Olive</td>
<td>700 Bainbridge, Monroe Fitzwater, German</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>800 Brown, Parrish Ogden Beaver, George</td>
<td>800 Catharine. Queen</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>900 Poplar, Laurel Master, Sharswood</td>
<td>900 Christian, Marriott</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1000 Jefferson</td>
<td>1000 Carpenter</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1200 Girard avenue, Stiles</td>
<td>1100 Washington avenue Ellsworth</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1300 Thompson, Seybert</td>
<td>1200 Federal</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1400 Master, Sharswood</td>
<td>1300 Wharton</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1500 Jefferson</td>
<td>1400 Reed</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1600 Oxford</td>
<td>1500 Dickinson, Greenwich</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1700 Columbia avenue</td>
<td>1600 Tasker, Sylvester</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1800 Montgomery avenue</td>
<td>1700 Morris, Watkins</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>1900 Berks</td>
<td>1800 Moore, Seigel</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>200 Norris</td>
<td>1900 Mifflin</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2100 Diamond</td>
<td>2000 McKean</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2200 Susquehanna ave.</td>
<td>2100 Snyder avenue</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2300 Dauphin</td>
<td>2200 Jackson</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2400 York</td>
<td>2300 Wolf</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2500 Cumberland</td>
<td>2400 Ritner</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2600 Huntingdon</td>
<td>2500 Porter</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td>2700 Lehigh avenue</td>
<td>2600 Shunk</td>
</tr>
<tr>
<td></td>
<td>2700 Oregon avenue</td>
</tr>
</tbody>
</table>
Homer, LeBoutillier & Co.,

Importers and Retailers of

Silks, Dress Goods, Upholstery,

HANDKERCHIEFS, GLOVES, RIBBONS, HOSIERY, LINENS, BLANKETS, Etc.

Paris Costumes.

1412, 1414 Chestnut Street,

Philadelphia.

...The...

GILBERT STUDIO,

926 Chestnut Street,


GIVE SPECIAL RATES TO STUDENTS

=GILBERT'S PHOTOGRAPHS OF GROUPS=

CANNOT BE EXCELLED.
H. H. TAYLOR,
2054 RIDGE AVENUE.

CHINA AND GLASS.
SICK FEEDERS, ETC.

Dry Goods, Notions, Dry Goods.

H. WILLIAMS,
2044 RIDGE AVENUE.

Prompt Attention Given to the Hospital Employees.

GRIST & O'DOWD.

MANUFACTURERS AND RETAILERS OF

FINE SHOES,
ALSO A FULL LINE OF RUBBERS.
2017 RIDGE AVENUE.
STILLINGS'  
2034 Ridge Avenue.  

The largest stock of Kitchen Outfits, comprising Tin, Iron and Agate Ware, Wooden Ware, Wash Tubs, Clothes Wringer, Brooms, Whisks, Brushes of all kinds, Carpet Sweepers, Bird Cages, Cutlery, Grips, Telescope Cases, Baskets of all kinds (also repaired), Oil Cloths, Door Mats and a great variety of Toys and Dolls, Express Wagons, Team Horses, etc.

THE LEADING HOUSEFURNISHING STORE UP TOWN.  
Twenty Years Established.  

Binder's  
FINE MILLINERY,  
1734 COLUMBIA AVENUE,  
PHILADELPHIA.  

Plain Dressmaking.  
Plain Sewing.  

Lizzie Stegmaier,  
1261 N. 23d Street.  

Mending of all kinds promptly attended to at  
VERY REASONABLE PRICES.
George F. Payne & Co.,

...Carpenters...

Builders and Contractors

401 to 409 South Juniper Street,

Between 13th and Broad, below Pine Street,

...Philadelphia.

Telephone 3811.
Dissecting Instruments.

STUDENTS' SUPPLIES
OF
SURGICAL INSTRUMENTS, ETC., ETC.

E. A. Yarnall Co.

Philadelphia Surgical Instrument House,

1020 WALNUT ST., PHILA.

Medical Batteries, Chairs, Orthopedic Apparatus, Etc.
Get your BOOK BINDING of OLD BOOKS, SHEET MUSIC, PERIODICALS and SUBSCRIPTION WORK bound or rebound... BY...

H. J. SCHAEFER, BOOK BINDER, 1406 North Twentieth Street, Philadelphia...

LIBRARY WORK A SPECIALTY.

E. GRAZIANI & BROS., BAKERS AND FRUITERERS, FOREIGN AND DOMESTIC FRUITS, 1630, 1734, 1822 and 2250 Ridge Avenue, And Northwestern Market, 26th Street and Girard Avenue, PHILADELPHIA. All Goods of the Best Quality Supplied at the Lowest Possible Prices.

JOSEPH G. STRIEBY, Manufacturer of Fine Custom Made Shoes, Also Anatomical Work a Specialty.

No. 1013 COLUMBIA AVENUE, PHILADELPHIA, PA.

Weddings and Parties Served at Short Notice. Fine Confections, Fancy Cream and French Cream to Order.

F. E. DUCOMMUN, Successor to Brendel's, BREAD AND FANCY CAKE BAKERY, N. E. Cor. 22d St. and Columbia Ave. Caterer and Excellent Kitchen. Water Ices.
Avil Printing Co.

JOHN D. AVIL, Pres.
HARRY S. SMITH, V.-Pres.
FRANK S. HOLBY, Treas.
CHAS. H. CLARKE, Sec.

JUST SIXTEEN MINUTES WESTWARD FROM CITY HALL.

Printing Lithographing Book-Binding Electrotyping Engraving

ALL UNDER ONE ROOF

32
ROBERT W. MARIS,
PHARMACIST,
Twenty-fourth and Thompson Streets.

...Dealer in...

Pure Drugs, Pharmaceutical Preparations,

Sick Room Appliances, etc.

PRESCRIPTIONS ACCURATELY COMPOUNDED.

A liberal discount to Students and Physicians,

Of Course You Know...

the best place in Philadelphia to buy

Seasonable Dry Goods

is at Eighth and Market Streets. The assortments of the choicest goods—foreign and domestic—are always attractively complete, and prices are remarkable for their extreme moderation.

A FULL ASSORTMENT OF RIBBONS IN ALL COLLEGE COLORS.

STRAWBRIDGE & CLOTHIER,
Market St., Eighth St., Filbert St.,
PHILADELPHIA.